

## Accounting (England)

#### IMPORTANT NOTIFICATION FOR ALL APPRENTICESHIP STARTS FROM 21 SEPTEMBER 2018

Modifications to SASE came into effect on 21 September 2018. Accordingly, SASE publication DFE-00236-2018 applies <u>both</u> to new Apprenticeship starts from 21 September 2018 <u>and</u> all Apprenticeships commenced before and not completed by 21 September 2018.

Latest framework version?

For any previous versions of this framework: <a href="https://acecerts.co.uk/framework\_library">https://acecerts.co.uk/framework\_library</a>

Issue date: 12 August 2016

**Issued By:** 

**Financial Skills Partnership** 

Apprenticeship Certificates **England** 

https://acecerts.co.uk/framework library

**Document Status:** 

**Issued** 



### Accounting (England)

### Contents

Framework information	5
Information on the Issuing Authority for this framework:	5
Click here to enter text.	5
Short description	5
Contact information	7
Proposer of this framework	7
Revising a framework	8
Why this framework is being revised	8
Summary of changes made to this framework	8
Qualifications removed	8
Qualifications added	8
Qualifications that have been extended	8
Purpose of this framework	9
Summary of the purpose of the framework	9
Aims and objectives of this framework (England)	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Entry conditions for this framework	11
Level Choose an item., New Pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Description of this pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Entry requirements for this pathway in addition to the framework <b>Bookmark not defined.</b>	entry requirements Error!
Qualifications	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Competence qualifications available to this pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Knowledge qualifications available to this pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Combined qualifications available to this pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Relationship between competence and knowledge qualifications	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Transferable skills (England)	27
Inclusion of Information and Communications Technology (ICT)	28
Progression routes into and from this pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee rights and responsibilities	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Certification Requirements for ERR	Error! Bookmark not defined.
How equality and diversity will be met	31

On and off the job guided learning (England)	33
Total GLH for each pathway	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Minimum off-the-job guided learning hours	Error! Bookmark not defined.
How this requirement will be met	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Minimum on-the-job guided learning hours	Error! Bookmark not defined.
How this requirement will be met	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Certification Requirements for GLH	36
Personal learning and thinking skills assessment and recognition (Engla	and)37
Summary of Personal Learning and Thinking Skills	37
Certification Requirements for PLTS	37
Creative thinking	37
Independent enquiry	38
Reflective learning	38
Team working	
Self management	39
Effective participation	39

### Framework information

### Information on the Issuing Authority for this framework:

#### Financial Skills Partnership

The Apprenticeship sector for occupations in financial services and accountancy.

Issue number: 16	This framework includes:
Framework ID: FR03885	Level 2 ⊠ Level 3 ⊠ Level 4-7 □
Date this framework is to be reviewed by: 31/08/2017	This framework is for use in: England

### **Short description**

The purpose of this framework is to train accountants to QCF Level 3 who work for accountancy firms or in finance divisions within other organisations.

This framework will be available at Levels 2 and 3 and is relevant for the following job roles:

#### Level 2

- Accounts Assistant/Clerk;
- · Cashier;
- Credit Control Clerk;
- Finance Assistant;
- Purchase Ledger Clerk;
- Sales Ledger Clerk.

#### Level 3

- Trainee Accounting Technician;
- Assistant Accountant.

There is a Higher Apprenticeship at Level 4 in Accounting for those who wish to pursue their studies in Accountancy. This framework document can be found in the AFO Library.

### **Contact information**

### Proposer of this framework

Employers from across the sector has been involved in the development of this framework. Some of these employers include Lincoln City Council, Preston City Accountants, NHS Shared Business Services and Procter & Gamble.

Dava	lonar	of thic	framework
DEVE	וטטכו	OI LIIIS	Halliework

Name: Steven Poss

Organisation: Financial Skills Partnership

Organisation Type: Sector Skills Council

Job Title: Development Specialist

Email: apprenticeships@financialskillspartnership.org.uk

Postal address: Financial & Legal Skills Partnership

1st Floor, Unit C Meadowcourt Business Park,

4 Hayland Street,

Sheffield, S9 1BY

Website: www.financialskillspartnership.org.uk

#### Issuing Authority's contact details

Issued by: Financial Skills Partnership

Issuer contact name: Nanette Lane

Issuer contact phone: 01142841930

Issuer Email: apprenticeships@financialskillspartnership.org.uk

### Revising a framework

### Why this framework is being revised

To include the new Level 2 and 3 qualifications for AAT available from 1 September 2016.

### Summary of changes made to this framework

To include the new 2016 Level 2 and 3 qualifications for AAT.

### Qualifications removed

AAT Level 2 Certificate in Accounting - 600/6909/0

AAT Level 3 Diploma in Accounting - 600/6908/9

### Qualifications added

AAT Level 2 Foundation Certificate in Accounting - 601/6552/2

AAT Level 3 Advanced Diploma in Accounting - 601/6554/6

#### Qualifications that have been extended

N/A

### Purpose of this framework

### Summary of the purpose of the framework

#### "Definition of Apprenticeships"

- 1. An Apprenticeship is a job with an accompanying skills development programme designed by employers in the sector. It allows the apprentice to gain technical knowledge and real practical experience, along with functional and personal skills, required for their immediate job and future career. These are acquired through a mix of learning in the workplace, formal off the job training and the opportunity to practice and embed new skills in a real work context. This broader mix differentiates the Apprenticeship experience from training delivered to meet narrowly focused job needs.
- 2. All apprentices commencing their Apprenticeship must have an Apprenticeship Agreement between the employer and the apprentice. This can be used to reinforce the understanding of the requirements of the Apprenticeship.
- 3. On completion of the Apprenticeship the apprentice must be able to undertake the full range of duties, in the range of circumstances appropriate to the job, confidently and competently to the standard set by the industry.

This framework has been developed by employers and providers to meet the needs of small and medium size enterprises through to the larger organisations. It provides a structured approach to training and developing prospective Accountants who understand the needs of the organisation, its customers and the sector within which they operate.

The Fair Access Report (July 2009) highlights the need for apprenticeships into the accounting profession and the UKCES Skills Audit (March 2010) highlights the need for more accountants in the future.

The framework includes the following job occupations at the following Level:

#### Level 2

- Accounts Assistant/Clerk;
- Cashier;
- Credit Control Clerk;
- Finance Assistant;
- Purchase Ledger Clerk;
- Sales Ledger Clerk.

#### Level 3

- Trainee Accounting Technician;
- Assistant Accountant.

#### Aims and objectives of this framework (England)

There is wide support for this Apprenticeship from both large and small companies in the accounting and finance sector.

This framework will help employers' recruitment of accountants to the sector by providing a training programme that can attract and help retain people in the sector.

The framework will help employers meet the current skills shortages in the sector, including a lack of industry and technical knowledge, as highlighted in our Skills Assessment for 2012 - please see pages 78 and 86 of the FSP Skills Assessment 2012 for England - <a href="http://www.ukces.org.uk/publications/ssa12-financial-insurance-profession-services">http://www.ukces.org.uk/publications/ssa12-financial-insurance-profession-services</a>

This programme will help employers assess the competence of their staff against National Occupational Standards (NOS).

This programme will also meet the Government's skills strategy by creating a modern technician class in the sector through apprenticeships and in particular Higher Apprenticeships. The apprenticeships are also aimed at a sector where future growth and jobs depend - please see UKCES Skills for Jobs report March 2010 - <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment\_data/file/339960/national-strategic-skills-audit-for-england-2010-volume-2-the-evidence-report.pdf">https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment\_data/file/339960/national-strategic-skills-audit-for-england-2010-volume-2-the-evidence-report.pdf</a>

This programme will also meet the Government's skills strategy by:

- 1. increasing the level of skills in the accountancy and finance sector to help achieve a world class skills base page 4;
- 2. providing access to Higher Level Apprenticeships that are required by learners and employers page 7;
- 3. ensuring vocational qualifications reflect the changing needs of employers page 15.

BIS Skills for Sustainable Growth, November 2010 - <a href="http://www.bis.gov.uk/assets/biscore/furthe">http://www.bis.gov.uk/assets/biscore/furthe</a> r-education-skills/docs/s/10-1274-skills-for-sustainable-growth-strategy.pdf

### Entry conditions for this framework

Providers and employers are advised to develop recruitment practices where potential apprentices are required to complete an application form, attend an interview and undertake appropriate initial assessment. The purpose of taking this approach is to raise the profile of the Accounting Apprenticeship so that it is seen as valuable and worthwhile. This is also used to tailor the programme to meet individual learning and support needs and to recognise prior learning and experience. This will prevent duplication of learning.

This framework does not impose any restrictions in terms of entry requirements. There are no minimum academic criteria for entry except where employers set their own requirements.

Entrants onto the Level 2 Apprenticeship in Accounting can take the Level 1 Functional Skill in English and Level 1 Functional Skill in Mathematics.

For the Level 2 Apprenticeship in Accounting, no previous accounting experience is necessary, but applicants must like working with numbers and be able to demonstrate the potential for developing good communication skills.

Entrants onto the Level 3 Apprenticeship in Accounting can take the Level 2 Functional Skill in English and Level 2 Functional Skill in Mathematics.

It is recommended that Level 3 Advanced Apprentices, who have not achieved a Level 2 Apprenticeship in Accounting will require GCSE Maths grades A\*- C or Key/Functional Skill Application of Number/Mathematics at Level 1, or equivalent, good communication skills and vocational experience (research has indicated that people without this experience are likely to experience difficulties in completing the framework if they enter the Apprenticeship at Level 3). Learners will be asked to declare any criminal convictions, bankruptcy or CCJs at the time of registration onto the accounting qualification.

It is essential that there is a rigorous initial assessment process. Whilst the FSP does not prescribe the use of any particular assessment and diagnostic tools, those used must be fit for purpose with regard to measuring literacy and numeracy skills.

Furthermore, assessing an applicant's suitability for working within the sector with regard to personal attitudes, attributes and behaviours is recommended.

Good practice in initial assessment has identified that it must include as a minimum:

- diagnosis of individuals' abilities and support needs in basic and Key or Functional skills;
- assessment of abilities and support needs in relation to knowledge qualifications;
- occupational/aptitudinal assessment;
- attitudinal assessment;
- assessment of prior experience and qualifications.



In addition, it must include discussions with individuals about their ambitions and motivation.

Successful recruitment practices will ensure that apprentices with the potential to complete the framework are placed on the programme. Where this potential has not been demonstrated they should be placed on pre-entry programmes.

The FSP encourages providers and employers to accept alternatives to qualifications when entering onto this apprenticeship to ensure equality of access for people with a learning difficulty. These alternatives include volunteering, employment, portfolio of evidence and non-accredited courses.

Other routes of entry including the 14-19 Diploma, Welsh Baccalaureate and Young Apprenticeships also provide a useful grounding for this apprenticeship.

### Level 2

Title for this framework at level 2

# Intermediate Apprenticeship in Accounting

### Pathways for this framework at level 2

Pathway 1: Accounting

### Level 2, Pathway 1: Accounting

### Description of this pathway

The total number of credits for this framework is as follows:

- Level 2 Certificate in Accounting -
  - 34 credits;
- Level 1 Functional Skill in Mathematics -
  - 5 credits;
- Level 1 Functional Skill in English -
  - 5 credits;

#### **TOTAL CREDITS:**

44 credits.

### Entry requirements for this pathway in addition to the framework entry requirements

There are no additional requirements other than the general entry conditions.

Job title(s)	Job role(s)	
Accounts Assistant	Maintain relevant financial records (both manual and computerised) and ensure the proper handling and control of all cash transactions.	
Accounts Clerk	Performs any combination of the following; calculating, posting and verifying duties to obtain financial data for use in maintaining accounting records.	
Cashier	A Cashier is responsible for maintaining outstanding customer service as per company standards, processing sales quickly, accurately and efficiently, cash register operations and safeguarding company assets.	
Credit Control Clerk	Maintaining a number of sales ledger accounts, with involvement in the entire ledger process, from assisting new customers for credit limit, through to debt collection and cash allocation.	
Finance Assistant	Duties may include accruals and prepayments, assisting in the processing of financial transactions and in the provision of financial information and produce monthly income cost reports.	
Purchase Ledger Clerk  Duties may include generating internal invoices to authorise payments on basic costs, paying out money via BACS or by cheque, checking and supplier statements and filing invoices and statements.		
Sales Ledger Clerk	Duties may include setting up new clients, producing invoices and chasing up oustanding debts.	

### Qualifications

Competence qualifications available to this pathway

N/A

Knowledge qualifications available to this pathway

N/A

### Combined qualifications available to this pathway

B1 ·	- Level 2 Diploi	ma in Financial and Management Accounting			
No.	Ref no.	Awarding organisation	Credit value	Guided learning hours	UCAS points value
B1a	601/0772/8	Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)	44	290	

B2 ·	- Level 2 Certif	icate in Accounting			
No.	Ref no.	Awarding organisation	Credit value	Guided learning hours	UCAS points value
B2a	601/6711/7	Gateway Qualifications	34	210	

В3	- Level 2 Found	lation Certificate in Accounting			
No.	Ref no.	Awarding organisation	Credit value	Guided learning hours	UCAS points value
B3a	601/6552/2	AAT	34	240	

### Relationship between competence and knowledge qualifications



A breakdown of the knowledge and competence units within these qualifications can be found via the following link:-

http://www.financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprentices hips



### Transferable skills (England)

Apprentices must complete, or have completed, one of the English transferable skills qualifications and one of the Mathematical transferable skills qualifications in order to successfully complete their Apprenticeship.

The list of acceptable qualifications may vary depending on the Apprentice's completion date of their Apprenticeship. Please check the qualifications that are acceptable for each Apprentice.

If Apprentices do not have acceptable evidence of the achievement of these mandatory qualifications, at the required grade/level, an Apprenticeship certificate cannot be awarded.

#### **ENGLISH**

For the current list of acceptable English qualifications and appropriate <u>minimum</u> grade/level requirements, please refer to the most recent version of <u>SASE</u> on the <u>www.gov.uk</u> website. Additional guidance materials can be found on the <u>Knowledge Base</u> section of the <u>ACE</u> website.
Does this framework require English achievement <u>above</u> the minimum SASE requirement?
YES □ NO ⊠
If YES, please state the grade/level required for English:
Click here to enter text.
MATHS For the current list of acceptable Maths qualifications and appropriate <a href="minimum">minimum</a> grade/level requirements, please refer to the most recent version of <a href="SASE">SASE</a> on the <a href="www.gov.uk">www.gov.uk</a> website. Additional guidance materials can be found on the <a href="Knowledge Base">Knowledge Base</a> section of the <a href="ACE">ACE</a> website.
Does this framework require Maths achievement <u>above</u> the minimum SASE requirement?
YES □ NO ⊠
If YES, please state the grade/level required for Maths:
Click here to enter text.



### Inclusion of Information and Communications Technology (ICT)

NO

 $\boxtimes$ 

Is ICT a framework requirement? YES  $\Box$ 

# Progression routes into and from this pathway

Progression into the apprenticeship can come from the following qualifications:

- GCSE's and alternative qualifications;
- A-Levels;
- 14-19 Diploma;
- Welsh Baccalaureate;
- AAT Level 1 Award in Accounting.

Apprentices can progress onto the Level 3 Advanced Apprenticeship in Accounting, the stand-alone Level 3 Diploma in Accounting qualification and onto the following jobroles:

- Trainee Accountant;
- Trainee Accounting Technician.



### Employee rights and responsibilities

The nine national outcomes for the employee rights and responsibilities (ERR) will be met and assessed via the FSP Apprentice Workbook in Accounting which is available from the FSP website - <a href="http://financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprenticeships">http://financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprenticeships</a>

These outcomes will be delivered and demonstrated by completing the various tasks within the workbook and will be assessed by the assessor.

On completion of the workbook, the apprentice, assessor and employer will sign a completion statement to confirm the nine ERR outcomes have been completed. This statement is required as evidence at the certification stage.

The time spent on ERR will contribute 35 hours towards meeting the on and off-the-jobguided learning requirement.

The Apprenticeships Certificate England website is <a href="https://acecerts.co.uk/web/">https://acecerts.co.uk/web/</a>



### Level 3

Title for this framework at level 3

### Advanced Apprenticeship in Accounting

### Pathways for this framework at level 3

Pathway 1: Accounting

### Level 3, Pathway 1: Accounting

### Description of this pathway

The total number of credits for this framework is as follows:

Level 3 Diploma in Financial and management Accounting - credits;

41

Level 2 Functional Skill in Mathematics -

5 credits;

Level 2 Functional Skill in English -

5 credits;

**TOTAL CREDITS:** 

51 credits.

### Entry requirements for this pathway in addition to the framework entry requirements

There are no additional requirements other than the general entry conditions.

Job title(s)	Job role(s)
Trainee Accounting Technician	Accounting technicians work in all areas of finance. They usually start working in a support role within a firm of accountants or in the accounts or finance departments of organisations in industry, commerce or the public sector. However, there are opportunities for progression with experience.
Assistant Accountant	You may gain exposure to bookkeeping, auditing, tax, payroll and related assignments. You may also be in contact with clients and would require good communications skills.

### Qualifications

Competence qualifications available to this pathway

N/A

Knowledge qualifications available to this pathway

N/A



### Combined qualifications available to this pathway

B1 - Level 3 Diploma in Financial and Management Accounting						
No.	Ref no.	Awarding organisation	Credit value	Guided learning hours	UCAS points value	
B1a	601/0773/X	Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)	41	340	N/A	
DO	Laval 2 Advan	and Dialogo in Association				
BZ ·	- Level 3 Advar	nced Diploma in Accounting				
No.	Ref no.	Awarding organisation	Credit value	Guided learning hours	UCAS points value	
B2a	601/6554/6	AAT	53	390	N/A	

### Relationship between competence and knowledge qualifications

A breakdown of the knowledge and competence units within these qualifications can be found via the following link:-

http://www.financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprentices hips

### Transferable skills (England)

Apprentices must complete, or have completed, one of the English transferable skills qualifications and one of the Mathematical transferable skills qualifications in order to successfully complete their Apprenticeship.

The list of acceptable qualifications may vary depending on the Apprentice's completion date of their Apprenticeship. Please check the qualifications that are acceptable for each Apprentice.

If Apprentices do not have acceptable evidence of the achievement of these mandatory qualifications, at the required grade/level, an Apprenticeship certificate cannot be awarded.

#### **ENGLISH**

For the current list of acceptable English qualifications and appropriate **minimum** grade/level requirements, please refer to the most recent version of <u>SASE</u> on the <u>www.gov.uk</u> website. Additional guidance materials can be found on the <u>Knowledge Base</u> section of the <u>ACE</u> website.

Does this framework require English achievement above the minimum SASE requirement?						
YES <b>NO</b>						
	, please state the grade/level required for English: here to enter text.					

#### **MATHS**

For the current list of acceptable Maths qualifications and appropriate **minimum** grade/level requirements, please refer to the most recent version of <u>SASE</u> on the <u>www.gov.uk</u> website. Additional guidance materials can be found on the <u>Knowledge Base</u> section of the <u>ACE</u> website.

Does this framework require Maths achievement <u>above</u> the minimum SASE requirement?

		•	<u></u> -	•
YES	П			
NO	$\boxtimes$			
	_			

If YES, please state the grade/level required for Maths:

Click here to enter text.



Accounting (England)
level 3
Pathway 1

Inclusion of Information and Communications Technology (ICT)								
Is ICT a framework requirement?	YES		NO					
ICT For the current list of acceptable ICT qualifications and appropriate <b>minimum</b> grade/level requirements, please refer to the most recent version of <u>SASE</u> on the <u>www.gov.uk</u> website. Additional guidance materials can be found on the <u>Knowledge Base</u> section of the <u>ACE</u> website.								
Does this framework require ICT achievement <u>above</u> the minimum SASE requirement								
YES								
If YES, please state the grade/level required for ICT:  Click here to enter text.								



## Progression routes into and from this pathway

Progression into the Level 3 Advanced Apprenticeship in Accounting can come from the following qualifications and apprenticeships:

- GCSE's and alternative qualifications;
- A-Levels;
- 14-19 Diploma;
- Welsh Baccalaureate;
- Level 2 Certificate in Accounting;
- Intermediate Apprenticeship in Accounting.

Apprentices can progress onto the Level 4 Higher Apprenticeship in Accounting, the stand alone Level 4 Diploma in Accounting qualification and onto the following qualifications and job roles:

- Various degree programmes in Accounting and Finance for further information, please visit UCAS - <a href="https://www.ucas.com/">https://www.ucas.com/</a>
- Individuals who have completed AAT and IAB Level 3, are eligible for entry into stage one of the Robert Gordon University - Aberdeen - BA Accounting with CIMA Advanced Diploma programme.

Some exemptions from Chartered Accounting examinations - Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA), Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS) and Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

UCAS points for this pathway: N/A



### Employee rights and responsibilities

The nine national outcomes for the employee rights and responsibilities (ERR) will be met and assessed via the FSP Apprentice Workbook in Accounting which is available from the FSP website - <a href="http://financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprenticeships">http://financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprenticeships</a>

These outcomes will be delivered and demonstrated by completing the various tasks within the workbook and will be assessed by the assessor.

On completion of the workbook, the apprentice, assessor and employer will sign a completion statement to confirm the nine ERR outcomes have been completed. This statement is required as evidence at the certification stage.

The time spent on ERR will contribute 35 hours towards meeting the on and off-the-jobguided learning requirement.

The Apprenticeships Certificate England website is <a href="https://acecerts.co.uk/web/">https://acecerts.co.uk/web/</a>

The remaining sections apply to all levels and pathways within this framework.

### How equality and diversity will be met

The Fair Access to the Professions report (July 2009) highlights that unless the trends of recent decades are reversed, the typical accountant of the future will today be growing up in a family that is better off than three in four of all families in the UK - page 21 - <a href="http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/http:/www.cabin">http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/http:/www.cabin</a> etoffice.gov.uk/media/227102/fair-access.pdf

Inequalities in the workplace also persist for women and there is evidence that new mothers face downward mobility once they return to the labour market. A recommendation in the report is to provide Apprenticeships with flexible entry and progression into the professions which can support mid-career, career interchange and career returner opportunities - page 35

- <a href="http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/http:/www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/media/227102/fair-access.pdf">http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/http://www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/media/227102/fair-access.pdf</a>

In previous years the FSP has been running its "Through the Glass Ceiling" programme. Whilst the main gender imbalance in our sector is at senior management level, there are also imbalances at other levels in the different sub-sectors. Under the FSP's Equality and Diversity policy, we are committed "to achieve a workforce that reflects, at all levels, the diversity of the UK's population", so we will be working with the unions to bid for future funding, under Women and Work and other programmes, to create projects that will help address these imbalances. Our aim is to see the progression, not just of women, but of all under-represented groups.

Entry conditions to this framework do not discriminate against any individuals, with the framework being open and accessible to all potential Apprentices, regardless of gender, ethnic origin, religion or disability who meet the stated selection criteria. Training providers and employers must comply with the Equality Act 2010 to ensure that applicants are not discriminated against in terms of entry to and promotion within the industry.

The 'equality of terms' provisions in the Equality Act 2010 (the Act) entitle a woman doing equal work with a man in the same employment to equality in pay and other terms and conditions.

The Act implies a sex equality clause automatically into her contract of employment, ensuring that her contractual terms are no less favourable than his. The man with whom she is claiming equal pay is known as her comparator.

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/equality-act-2010

LSIS has also developed guidance which covers off compliance with the Equality Act 2010 and maps against the OFSTED inspection framework. This is useful for both apprenticeships and

higher apprenticeships. It is a national equality and diversity framework and standard relevant

to partners and providers and is designed to be used and adapted creatively and flexibly - <a href="http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130802100617/http:/lsis.org.uk/publication-conte">http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130802100617/http:/lsis.org.uk/publication-conte</a> nt/new-equality-act-2010-what-does-it-mean-fe-and-skills-sector

There should be open recruitment of Apprentices to the programme, which is available to all people, regardless of gender, ethnic origin, religion or disability who meet the stated selection criteria.

All partners involved in the delivery of the apprenticeship - providers, assessment centres and employers must be committed to a policy of equal opportunities and must have a stated equal opportunities policy and procedure.

Only 0.2% of Apprenticeship learners progressed to further or higher education in 2007/08, and few went directly into the professions. The FSP encourages all apprentices to progress onto further education for themselves and into a profession and progression routes are available for them to do so. This will help talent, regardless of background or qualifications to have the opportunity to develop and thrive.

This framework therefore aims to tackle these issues.

## On and off the job guided learning (England)

#### Total GLH for each pathway

The total number of the SASE GLH to be delivered on and off-the-job for the Level 2 Intermediate Apprenticeship in Accounting is as follows. The delivery time for this new Level 2 Intermediate Apprenticeship in Accounting is expected to be over a 12 month period:

The minimum duration of 12 months will commence in August 2012. The 12 month minimum duration will apply to all new starts from 1 August 2012 onwards. For those aged 19 and over who have been assessed as having some accreditation or recognition of prior learning, then the duration can be less, but must never be less than 6 months. Funding (where qualifications are in scope) will be reduced accordingly.

- Level 2 Certificate in Accounting 210 GLH minimum GLH qualification in all pathways;
- Level 1 Functional Skill in Mathematics 45 GLH;
- Level 1 Functional Skill in English 45 GLH;
- FSP Apprentice Workbook 35 GLH;

TOTAL GLH = 335

The total number of the SASE GLH to be delivered on and off-the-job for the Level 3 Advanced Apprenticeship in Accounting is as follows. The delivery time for this new Level 3 Advanced Apprenticeship in Accounting is expected to be over a 12 to 18 month period:

- Level 3 Diploma in Financial & Management Accounting 340 GLH minimumGLH qualification in all pathways;
- Level 2 Functional Skill in Mathematics 45 GLH;
- Level 2 Functional Skill in English 45 GLH;
- FSP Apprentice Workbook 35 GLH;

TOTAL GLH = 465

### Minimum off-the-job guided learning hours

Further off-the-job guided learning can also be provided to exceed the minimum requirement.

For example, if an apprentice achieves the Level 2 framework after 12 months, the apprentice would be required to complete 335 Guided Learning Hours (GLH) Learning, of which 30% (104 hours) needs to be off-the-job learning.

For example, if an apprentice achieves the Level 3 framework after 18 months, the apprentice would be required to complete 465 Guided Learning Hours (GLH) Learning, of which 30% (143 hours) needs to be off-the-job learning.

Apprentices may take less or more time to complete the framework based on their educational attainment and circumstances.

#### **GLH** should:

- achieve clear and specific outcomes which contribute directly to the successful achievement of the framework and this may include accredited and non-accredited elements of the framework;
- be planned, reviewed and evaluated jointly between the apprentice and a tutor, teacher, mentor or manager; allow access as and when required by the apprentice either to a tutor, teacher, mentor or manager;
- be delivered during contracted working hours;
- be delivered through one or more of the following methods: individual and group teaching; e-learning; distance learning; coaching; mentoring; feedback and assessment; collaborative/networked learning with peers; guided study.

### How this requirement will be met

Examples of 'off-the-job' learning can include:

- inductions to apprenticeship programmes;
- feedback and mentoring following call monitoring and audits;
- briefings such as morning 'huddles', product updates;
- competence qualification and key/functional skills assessments;
- 1 to 1 teaching and coaching for the Apprenticeship eg for the knowledge units or functional skills;
- required assignment work and study between workshops eg for the knowledge units;
- review meetings;
- one-to-one's and appraisals;
- pre course preparation work.

These are in addition to traditional learning methods, such as online and distance learning, formal training workshops (whether by employer or training provider/college) and company inductions.

A sign off form will be completed by the apprentice, employer and provider to confirm the GLH requirements have been achieved and this will be submitted to the certifying authority at the certification stage.

### Minimum on-the-job guided learning hours

Further on-the-job guided learning can also be provided to exceed the minimum requirement.

For example, if an apprentice achieves the Level 2 framework after 12 months, the apprentice would be required to complete 231 GLH on-the-job learning.

For example, if an apprentice achieves the Level 3 framework after 18 months, the apprentice would be required to complete 322 GLH on-the-job learning.

Apprentices may take less or more time to complete the framework based on their educational attainment and circumstances.

#### **GLH** should:

- achieve clear and specific outcomes which contribute directly to the successful achievement of the framework and this may include accredited and non-accredited elements of the framework;
- be planned, reviewed and evaluated jointly between the apprentice and a tutor, teacher, mentor or manager; allow access as and when required by the apprentice either to a tutor, teacher, mentor or manager;
- be delivered during contracted working hours;
- be delivered through one or more of the following methods: individual and group teaching; e-learning; distance learning; coaching; mentoring; feedback and assessment; collaborative/networked learning with peers; guided study.

Evidence for on-the-job GLH will include:

• Certificate of the Competence elements of the framework.

### How this requirement will be met

Examples of 'on-the-job' learning can include:

- Side by side training for those new to a role or who need to improve their skills;
- Live coaching such as around call monitoring;
- Job shadowing;
- Supervised day to day caseload activity;
- E mail and intranet updates.

A sign off form will be completed by the apprentice, employer and provider to confirm the GLH requirements have been achieved and this will be submitted to the certifying authority at the certification stage.



#### Certification Requirements for GLH

All providers and apprentices must complete the Apprenticeship Consent Form when claiming for the apprentice's Apprenticeship certificate. The universal form covers declarations for the apprentice to:

- confirm the existence of an Apprenticeship Agreement between themselves and their employer;
- confirm their achievement of all ERR requirements;
- confirm their achievement of all 6 PLTS;
- confirm that they have received at least the minimum levels of GLH set out in their framework and have undertaken training both on and off the job.

All apprentices must sign this form at the end of programme to give their authority for the claimant, named on the form, to make a claim, on their behalf, for their Apprenticeship completion certificate.



## Personal learning and thinking skills assessment and recognition (England)

Summary of Personal Learning and Thinking Skills

Four of the six Personal Learning and Thinking Skills (PLTS) have been mapped to the mandatory units of the knowledge and competence qualification.

Those two skills which are not covered in the knowledge and competence qualification will be achieved and evidenced through the FSP Apprentice Workbook in Accounting which is available on the FSP website -

http://financialskillspartnership.org.uk/skills-resources/using-apprenticeships

#### **Certification Requirements for PLTS**

All providers and apprentices must complete the Apprenticeship Consent Form when claiming for the apprentice's Apprenticeship certificate. The universal form covers declarations for the apprentice to:

- confirm the existence of an Apprenticeship Agreement between themselves and their employer;
- confirm their achievement of all ERR requirements;
- confirm their achievement of all 6 PLTS;
- confirm that they have received at least the minimum levels of GLH set out in their framework and have undertaken training both on and off the job.

All apprentices must sign this form at the end of programme to give their authority for the claimant, named on the form, to make a claim, on their behalf, for their Apprenticeship completion certificate.

### Creative thinking

People think creatively by generating and exploring ideas, making original connections. They try different ways to tackle a problem, working with others to find imaginative solutions and outcomes that are of value.

To demonstrate these skills, behaviours and personal qualities, apprentices should:

- Generate ideas and explore possibilities;
- Ask questions to extend their thinking;
- Connect their own and others' ideas and experiences in inventive ways; Question their own and others' assumptions;
- Try out alternatives or new solutions and follow ideas through; Adapt ideas as circumstances change.



### Independent enquiry

People process and evaluate information in their investigations, planning what to do and how to go about it. They take informed and well-reasoned decisions, recognising that others have different beliefs and attitudes.

Skills, behaviours and personal qualities for apprentices:

- Identify questions to answer and problems to resolve;
- Plan and carry out research, appreciating the consequences of decisions; Explore issues, events or problems from different perspectives;
- Analyse and evaluate information, judging its relevance and value;
- Consider the influence of circumstances, beliefs and feelings on decisions and events; Support conclusions, using reasoned arguments and evidence.

### Reflective learning

People evaluate their strengths and limitations, setting themselves realistic goals with criteria for success. They monitor their own performance and progress, inviting feedback from others and making changes to further their learning.

To demonstrate these skills, behaviours and personal qualities, apprentices should:

- Assess themselves and others, identifying opportunities and achievements;
- Set goals with success criteria for their development and work;
- Review progress, acting on the outcomes;
- Invite feedback and deal positively with praise, setbacks and criticism; Evaluate experiences and learning to inform future progress;
- Communicate their learning in relevant ways for different audiences.

### Team working

People work confidently with others, adapting to different contexts and taking responsibility for their own part. They listen to and take account of different views. They form collaborative relationships, resolving issues to reach agreed outcomes.

To demonstrate these skills, behaviours and personal qualities, apprentices should:

- Collaborate with others to work towards common goals;
- Reach agreements, managing discussions to achieve results;
- Adapt behaviour to suit different roles and situations, including leadership roles; Show fairness and consideration to others;
- Take responsibility, showing confidence in themselves and their contribution;
- Provide constructive support and feedback to others.

### Self management

People organise themselves, showing personal responsibility, initiative, creativity and enterprise with a commitment to learning and self-improvement. They actively embrace change, responding positively to new priorities, coping with challenges and looking for opportunities.

To demonstrate these skills, behaviours and personal qualities, apprentices should:

- Seek out challenges or new responsibilities and show flexibility when priorities change;
- Work towards goals, showing initiative, commitment and perseverance;
- Organise time and resources, prioritising actions;
- Anticipate, take and manage risks;
- Deal with competing pressures, including personal and work-related demands;
- Respond positively to change, seeking advice and support when needed;
- Manage their emotions, and build and maintain relationships.

### Effective participation

People actively engage with issues that affect them and those around them. They play a full part in the life of their school, college, workplace or wider community by taking responsible action to bring improvements for others as well as themselves.

To demonstrate these skills, behaviours and personal qualities, apprentices should:

- Discuss issues of concern, seeking resolution where needed;
- Present a persuasive case for action;
- Propose practical ways forward, breaking these down into manageable steps;
- Identify improvements that would benefit others as well as themselves;
- Try to influence others, negotiating and balancing diverse views to reach workable solutions;
- Act as an advocate for views and beliefs that may differ from their own.

## apprenticeship FRAMEWORK

For more information visitwww.acecerts.co.uk/framework\_library